### **Minutes**

## PETITION HEARING - CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND RECYCLING



#### 20 September 2012

Meeting held at Committee Room 4 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

#### **Members Present:**

Councillor Keith Burrows

#### Officers Present:

Alan Tilly, Nav Johal and Danielle Watson

#### Also Present

Councillors' Dominic Gilham, Brian Stead, David Benson and Carol Melvin.

# 7. TO CONFIRM THAT THE BUSINESS OF THE MEETING WILL TAKE PLACE IN PUBLIC. (Agenda Item 1)

It was confirmed that the meeting would take place in public.

# 8. COLHAM AVENUE, YIEWSLEY - PETITION REQUESTING A RESIDENTS' PARKING SCHEME (Agenda Item 3)

Councillor Dominic GIlham attended as a Ward Councillor in support of the petitioners.

Concerns, comments and suggestions raised at the meeting included the following:

- Mr Alistair Mullins spoke on behalf of the petition submitted to the Council.
- The petitioner asked that the Cabinet Member considered the request for a parking scheme on the odd numbered side of Colham Avenue.
- During the day from 7am vehicles arrived to park on the street and go to their work place or business.
- That by 9am the road was full of non-residents vehicles.
- It was very difficult for residents to find parking on their street.
- The problem was more acute at the Fairfield Road end of the street.

### A Ward Councillor spoke and raised the following points:

- The Ward Councillor welcomed the report and what was informed by the petitioner.
- It was noted that the street was almost as 2 one-way streets.
- The Ward Councillor was looking beyond just the odd numbered side of the street.
- It was noted that in the past the resident response was against any parking measures being imposed on the street.
- The petition had 43 petitioners, which was more than the number that had responded to the original survey.
- That it was not just Yiewsley residents that were affected.

- Some people parked there and then went to the train station.
- The problem would get bigger.
- The Ward Councillor would be engaging with residents and petitioners to get a better response to consultation.
- The Ward Councillor asked the Cabinet Member to agree the officer recommendation and agree to a consultation.

Councillor Keith Burrows listened to the concerns of the petitioners and responded to the points raised:

- The Cabinet Member agreed that the road was used for people to park and use the nearby train station.
- The Cabinet Member agreed to add this to the Council's overall parking programme for investigation.
- That all residents understand the consultation and be encouraged to complete it.
- The consultation would be done in conjunction with Ward Councillor's to look at the streets nearby who may benefit from a resident parking scheme.
- The Cabinet Member stressed that he needed a mandate to put a residents parking scheme in place. It was therefore for residents to tell the Council want they wanted.

#### Officers advised that:

 That the usual timeframe for a consultation was 6-12 months, but there was a similar consultation in the area scheduled for December.
 Officers would look to include Colham Avenue to this consultation.

#### **Resolved - That the Cabinet Member:**

- 1. Met and discussed with petitioners their concerns with parking on Colham Avenue, Yiewsley.
- 2. Asked officers to add the request to the Council's overall parking programme for subsequent investigation.

### **Reasons for recommendation**

To give the Cabinet Member the opportunity to discuss in detail the petitioners' concerns

#### **Alternative Options Considered**

This was discussed with petitioners.

# 9. PIELD HEATH ROAD, HILLINGDON - PETITION REQUESTING THE NAMING OF A CROSSING AND ROAD SAFETY MEASURES (Agenda Item 4)

Councillor Brain Stead attended as a Ward Councillor in support of the petitioners.

It was noted that the petition to Council had 562 signatures, not 32 as stated in the officer report, as an additional 530 signatures had been submitted.

Concerns, comments and suggestions raised at the meeting included the following:

- Mrs Sharon Pargiter spoke to behalf of the petition submitted to the Council.
- The family and friends of Jo Larkin asked the Council for a speed reduction near Hillingdon Hospital.
- Mrs Larkin passed away in an accident outside Hillingdon Hospital.
- It was stated the lights at the junction where Jo Larkin's death occurred could have contributed to the accident on 15 November 2010.
- Mrs Pargiter informed that the police had looked into the matter; that statements had been very conflicting on what actually happened.
- Vehicles queued into the traffic lights and were stationary at the lights due to the traffic, even when green.
- Quite often the road would be so congested that cars would remain stationary for a few minutes.
- There was confusion on who had the right of way between pedestrians and drivers.
- The vision at the junction was obscured.
- 30mph was too fast for the left inside lane for drivers that were travelling straight ahead.
- There were 6 different bus routes that used the area, these could also obscure views.
- The vulnerable, elderly and children used the roads in the area.
- Installing CCTV cameras could establish reasons for any future events that could occur.
- The petitioner stated that her mother was extremely aware of road safety.
- The case had caused unimaginable pain to her family.
- Safety measures could prevent another family to go through the pain and save another life.
- The petitioners also asked for a plaque with Mrs Larkin's name on to put on the road in memory.

A Ward Councillor spoke and raised the following points:

- The Ward Councillor in attendance stated that all three Ward Councillor's were in support of the petition for road safety measures and a plaque in memory of Mrs Larkin.
- The hospital was working with TfL on options looking forward.
- The accident outside the hospital was still very much in the thoughts of everyone who signed the petition.

Councillor Keith Burrows listened to the concerns of the petitioners and responded to the points raised:

- The Cabinet Member understood the petitioners concerns and gave his deepest sympathy on the events that lead to Mrs Larkin's death.
- The Cabinet Member agreed that a plaque be placed in dedication to Mrs Larkin. He informed petitioners that they would be advised by officers when this would be put so that they could be present.
- Work was already underway and various plans had been looked at by the Cabinet Member.
- A reduction of the speed limit needed to be requested and this had to

be agreed with the emergency services. The Cabinet Member advised that due to the location of the road, outside Accident & Emergency, Hillingdon Hospital, it was unlikely a speed limit reduction would be agreed.

- Therefore other safety measures to reduce speed needed to be considered.
- The Cabinet Member would agree considering a safety table outside A & E.
- It was noted there was already one VAS on Pield Heath Road, these are rotational. The Cabinet Member asked officers to look into whether another VAS was required in the area.
- The Cabinet Member informed petitioners that CCTV and speed cameras were not in the Council's jurisdiction. This was run by TfL and the MET. It was noted that campaigning for these could take many years.
- When these are installed KSI figures were looked at. Accident statistics needed to support the need for these. This was set by statue and Greater London was looked at, not just the Borough.
- The Cabinet Member asked officers to look at traffic calming measures through the road safety programme.
- As the Cabinet Member he was informed of the accident and sent road safety officers out straightaway to work very closely with the Police and take any comments on board.
- It was noted that there would be some reconfiguration of the junction.
- The Council worked closely with the safer neighbourhood teams.
- It was noted that any changes to the traffic lights would need TfL permission.

#### Resolved - That the Cabinet Member:

- 1. Met with petitioners and discussed in detail their request for road safety measures on Pield Heath Road and their request to name the crossing after Margaret Josephine Larkin.
- 2. Considered the request for naming the controlled crossing on Pield Heath Road, which could take the form of a suitable plaque dedicated to the memory of Margaret Josephine Larkin.
- 3. Asked officers to investigate any feasible measures identified as part of the Council's Road Safety Programme.
- 4. Instructed officers to investigate the feasibility of adding Pield Heath Road to future Phases of the Vehicle Activated Signs (VAS) Programme.

#### Reasons for recommendation

To give the Cabinet Member the opportunity to discuss in detail the petitioners' concerns

#### **Alternative Options Considered**

This was discussed with petitioners.

## 10. WINDSOR PARK ROAD, CRANFORD - PETITION REQUESTING A RESIDENTS' PARKING SCHEME (Agenda Item 5)

Councillor David Benson attended as a Ward Councillor in support of the petitioners. The petitioners were unable to attend the meeting and had asked Councillor Benson to speak on their behalf.

A Ward Councillor spoke and raised the following points:

- The Ward Councillor had received a phone call from the lead petitioner who could not make the meeting. Therefore, the Ward Councillor informed, he was speaking on behalf of the petitioners.
- It was stated that parking in Heathrow Village had got worse and worse.
- The problem with parking was particularly bad on Windsor Park Road, especially since the new Starbucks and KFC had been built.
- It was noted that cars were being parked on Windsor Park Road and the car owners would go to Heathrow on holiday. This meant the cars could be parked there for a week or two.
- The closing of an airport staff car park had resulted in airport workers parking their cars in the area too. It is anticipated that this car park would re-open in another 2-3 years.
- People would park their cars at Windsor Park Road to visit the local shops and cause congestion for parking.
- It was also noted that surrounding parking measures in nearby streets affected the parking on Windsor Park Road.
- 22 petitioners had signed the petition, which was a high number for a small road.

Councillor Keith Burrows listened to the concerns of the petitioners and responded to the points raised:

- The Cabinet Member stated that when the original consultation for a resident's parking scheme was sent out that the majority response from Windsor Park Road was that they did not want a scheme.
- The consultation would be wider than just one road.
- The Cabinet Member would ask the officers to move as soon as they could and the Ward Councillors would be approached before the consultation to consider how wide the area looked at should be.

#### Officers advised that:

That consultation results from Harmsworth had not yet been reported.
 Once this had been completed that consideration on the next step would be looked at.

#### **Resolved - That the Cabinet Member:**

- 3. Met and discussed with petitioners their concerns with parking on Windsor Park Road, Cranford.
- 4. Asked officers to add the request to the Council's overall parking programme for subsequent investigation.

#### Reasons for recommendation

To give the Cabinet Member the opportunity to discuss in detail the petitioners' concerns

#### **Alternative Options Considered**

This was discussed with petitioners.

# 11. CAREW ROAD, NORTHWOOD - PETITION AGAINST & PETITION IN SUPPORT OF THE PROPOSED TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES (Agenda Item 6)

Item 6 and 7 were both in regard to proposed traffic calming measures for Carew Road. A petition was received in support of the proposal and a petition was received in objection. Both petitions were considered together by the Cabinet Member.

Councillor Carol Melvin attended as a Ward Councillor.

Concerns, comments and suggestions raised at the meeting included the following:

- Mrs Lisa Maclay spoke on behalf of the petition submitted which was against the proposed traffic calming measures for Carew Road.
- It was noted that the petition was signed by residents of Carew Road.
- Petitioners felt the proposals were too extreme.
- That if the proposed measures went ahead it would result in a 'jungle' with the extra road furniture.
- There were only brief periods of traffic; in the morning and afternoon.
- Councillor Scott Seaman-Digby's comments had been emailed and received by the Cabinet Member.
- The proposals would have a detrimental impact.
- There would be an increase of noise from cars going over traffic tables.
- The traffic tables and humps would cause homes to shake.
- That any problems on the road were caused by a lack of consideration by parents dropping their children to school.
- The introduction of a zebra crossing would not prevent the parking by parents.
- Parking spaces were already limited.
- The road humps would cause discomfort to the elderly.
- The petitioners had researched into traffic calming measures and it was noted that the Mayor of London asked Councils to consider alternatives to road humps.
- Road humps lowered the tone and caused a nuisance.
- Another Council had planned to get rid of street clutter.
- Petitioners agreed that there could be a compromise but felt the proposals were out of context.
- They asked that a 20mph zone be looked at as a trial.
- Mrs Millet spoke on behalf of the petition submitted which was in support of the proposed traffic calming measures.
- It was noted that there were 2 schools at either end of Carew Road. But there was nowhere safe for children to cross.

- There was an accident 2 years ago when Mrs Millet was walking her
   9 year old daughter to school. A car knocked into her daughter.
- This encouraged Mrs Millet to look into road safety and traffic calming measures.
- If the proposals were enforced then traffic would be forced to travel at a slower speed.
- The local traffic would think twice before using the road as a cut through.
- Parents may consider walking their children to school.
- Last year 26 children died on British roads, and 1,600 were seriously injured.
- As stated by the Royal Society of the Prevention of Accidents, speed significantly increases the chance of injury and fatality.
- It was noted that travelling at 20mph resulted in a 2.5% fatality chance, and travelling at 30mph resulted in a 40% chance of a fatality.
- Mrs Millet stated that speed tables were quite different to speed humps, and were noise free.
- Mrs Millet used to walk the last 5 minutes to the school to drop her daughter off. Since the accident she now drove to Carew Road as there was nowhere safe to cross.
- She could not consider giving her 11 year old daughter the independence of walking to school whilst there was not a safe crossing.

### A Ward Councillor spoke and raised the following points:

- The Ward Councillor stated that the officer report was inaccurate in stating that Ward Councillors were consulted and in support of the proposals.
- The Ward Councillor had originally sent an email to officers to state she strongly disagreed with the proposals due to it being a busy and narrow road.
- She did not think the 20mph speed limit would be a problem.
- But was against speed tables and she knew there to be issues surrounding them.
- The Ward Councillor supported the request for a suitable crossing.

Councillor Keith Burrows listened to the concerns of the petitioners and responded to the points raised:

- The Cabinet Member noted the letter received from Mrs Evelyn Lax which was against the proposed traffic calming measures. This letter was passed to Democratic Services.
- 24/7 speed volume surveys had been undertaken. On two occasions the survey equipment had been deliberately tampered with.
- The Cabinet Member asked officers to note the comments made by petitioners in support and objection of the proposals and report back to the Cabinet Member on options and a revised report.
- The Cabinet Member would also take into account the original data from the surveys as this was an indicator on the trends. This data informed what type of vehicle was using the road, the time and speed of the vehicle. This data was used and analysed.
- The original proposal put forward to the Cabinet Member would be considered along with new options the officers looked into.

- That, if possible, a crossing near the school could be considered. This
  would need to go through the relevant safety audit.
- It was noted the original designs had been through the safety audit.
- The options would be discussed with Ward Councillors, and the Cabinet Member would try to come up with proposals that suit both parties.
- It was noted that the Cabinet Member would have looked at Police Data. There had been two accidents involving children on the road. The Cabinet Member had a legal responsibility to look into this seriously.
- The Cabinet Member also informed petitioners that the London Borough of Hillingdon did not use speed humps.
- The Cabinet Member was not looking at making the road safe just for the schools but for everyone who used the roads.
- If the petitioners or residents had any further comments they wished to be considered, they could forward this to their Ward Councillors or to the Cabinet Member. All comments would be taken on board.

#### Resolved - That the Cabinet Member:

- 1. Met and discussed with petitioners their concerns and support with the proposed traffic calming measures for Carew Road.
- 2. Noted that two separate petitions had been received from residents, one against and one for the proposed traffic calming measures.
- 3. Noted the outcome of an informal consultation and traffic survey undertaken.
- 4. Asked officers to conduct a review of the proposed traffic calming measures under the Road Safety Programme and report back to the Cabinet Member.

#### Reasons for recommendation

To give the Cabinet Member the opportunity to discuss in detail the petitioners' concerns

#### **Alternative Options Considered**

This was discussed with petitioners.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.33 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Nav Johal on 01895 250472. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.